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2025
38,214,733 95.8
1,674,589 4.2

39,889,322

( 5,739 ) 1000

2025

( ) ( )

)

277,220 121.80| 33,764,084| 137.85| 38,214,733| 95.8

2025 10
42 10

1 US ULTRA BOND CBT Sep25 (CBT) 18.81
2 US LONG BOND(CBT) Sep25 (CBT) 10.41
3 Euro-BTP Future Jun25 (EUX) 9.38
4 JPN 10Y BOND(OSE) Jun25 (OSE) 8.67
5 LONG GILT FUTURE Sep25 (ICF) 8.54
6 EURO-BUND FUTURE Jun25 (EUX) 8.30
7 Euro-0AT Future Jun25 (EUX) 8.24
8 US 10YR NOTE (CBT)Sep25 (CBT) 7.56
9 S&P500 EMINI FUT Jun25 (CME) 6.28
10 FTSE 100 IDX FUT Jun25 (ICF) 5.07

2025
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2025

2024 2025
2021 31 60,869,252.54 8,757,259 108.04 15,544
2022 31 38,029,521.69 5,471,307 108.55 15,617
2023 31 47,523,171.39 6,837,159 93.82 13,498
2024 31 42,721,621.31 6,146,360 101.43 14,593
2025 31 42,836,056.55 6,162,823 107.80 15,509
2024 43,423,325.22 6,247,314 107.21 15,424
43,489,881.17 6,256,889 108.34 15,587
43,259,741.64 6,223,779 107.86 15,518
44,344,704.78 6,379,873 110.85 15,948
10 42,683,568.11 6,140,885 106.86 15,374
11 42,911,083.97 6,173,618 107.63 15,485
12 42,294,960.56 6,084,976 105.84 15,227
2025 42,836,056.55 6,162,823 107.80 15,509
43,075,442 .50 6,197,264 109.41 15,741
41,735,298.30 6,004,457 106.22 15,282
39,491,627.14 5,681,660 100.87 14,512
39,889,322.26 5,738,877 101.91 14,662
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717,154 153,781 563,373
2020 23 (717,154) (153,781) (563,373)
2021 ’ ’ ’
96,493 309,527 350,339
2021
96,493 309,527 350,339
2022
329,475 173,273 506,541
2022
329,475 173,273 506,541
2023
0 85,347 421,194
2023 () (85,347) (421,194)
2024 ’ ’
1,600 25,435 397,359
2024 (1,600) (25,435) (397,359)
2025 ’ ’ ’
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AHL

2025 1 31

2025 1 31 2024 1 31

2,9 1,840,928 264,854 1,776,261 255,551
2,3,9 41,166,629 5,922,643 41,222,850 5,930,731
9 - - 10,243 1,474
43,007,557 6,187,497 43,009,354 6,187,756

59 7,890 1,135 8,137 1,171
5,9 25,307 3,641 22,391 3,221
8,9 14,841 2,135 28,687 4,127
8,9 17,268 2,484 4,592 661
8,9 1,439 207 383 55
8,9 1,855 267 7,653 1,101
9 32,145 4,625 - -
8,9 5,560 800 5,734 825
8,9 7,023 1,010 15,000 2,158
9 80,799 11,625 79,310 11,410
194,127 27,929 171,887 24,729

42,813,430 6,159,568 42,837,467 6,163,026

4 397,359 421,194

1 107.74 16 101.70 15
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AHL

2025 1 31

2025 1 31 2024 1 31
467,739 67,294 216,330 31,123
2,626,040 377,808 3,830,320 551,068
154 22 (88) (13)
3,093,933 445124 4,046,562 582,179
8 248,643 35,772 241,643 34,765
8 54,080 7,780 50,733 7,299
8 64,825 9,326 65,259 9,389
5 89,999 12,948 90,001 12,948
5 34,121 4,909 96,703 13,913
40,603 5,842 62,828 9,039
51,860 7,461 52,207 7,511
8 4,322 622 4,350 626
8 1,530 220 10,000 1,439
589,983 84,881 673,724 96,929

2,503,950 360,243 3,372,838 485,250
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2025 1 31 2024 1 31
42,837,467 6,163,026 47,567,669 6,843,561
170,816 24,575 - -
(2,698,803) (388,277)  (8,103,040)  (1,165,784)
2,503,950 360,243 3,372,838 485,250
42,813,430 6,159,568 42,837,467 6,163,026
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2025 1 31 2024 1 31
2,503,950 360,243 3,372,838 485,250
- - (10,000) (1,439)
3,150,000 453,191 8,450,000 1,215,702
(467,739) (67,294) (216,330) (31,123)
(2,626,040) (377,808)  (3,830,320) (551,068)
10,243 1,474 40,781 5,867
(247) (36) (22,192) (3,193)
2,916 420 22,391 3,221
(13,846) (1,992) 3,182 458
12,676 1,824 (332) (48)
1,056 152 @7) (4)
(5,798) (834) 1,700 245
(174) (25) (415) (60)
(7,977) (1,148) 10,000 1,439
1,489 214 1,621 233
2,560,509 368,380 7,822,897 1,125,480
170,816 24,575 - -
(2,698,803) (388,277)  (8,103,040)  (1,165,784)
32,145 4,625 (14,159) (2,037)
(2,495,842) (359,077)  (8,117,199)  (1,167,821)
64,667 9,304 (294,302) (42,341)
1,776,261 255,551 2,070,563 297,892
1,840,928 264,854 1,776,261 255,551
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2025 1 31
1.
AHL
2013 12 2
UBS 1]
UBS 2020 2
24
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands
AHL
I
MUFG Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Ltd
UBS
2027 1 31
() 1,000,000
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FINMA 2023 3 19 AG
2023 6 12 UBS
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a
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Statement of Financial Position

As at January 31, 2025
{Stated in United States dollars)

Note January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024

UsD Usp

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 29 1,840,928 1,776,261

Investments in Selected Fund 239 41,166,629 41,222 850

Prepayments and other assets 9 - 10,243
Total assets 43,007,557 43,009,354
Liabilities

Administration fees payable 59 7890 8,137

Professional fees pavable 59 25,307 22,391

Distributor fees pavable 8.9 | 4,841 28,687

Fee Agent fees payable 8.9 | 7,268 4,592

Agent Member Company fees payable 8.9 1,439 383

Manager Support Service Provider fees payable 89 1,855 7.653

Redemption payable 9 32,145 -

Investment Manager fees payvable %9 5,560 5,734

Trustee fees payable 89 7,023 15,000

Other payvables 9 80,799 79,310
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to

the holder of redeemahle units) 194,127 171,887
Met assets attributable to the holder of redeemable

units 42 813,430 42,837 467
Number of units outstanding 4 397.359 421,194
Met asset value per unit [ 07,74 101,70

See accompanying notes to the financial statemens.,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended January 31, 2025
{Stated in United States dollars)

For the vear ended  For the year ended
Note January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024

Usp UsD

Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL:
Net realized gain on financial assets and liabilities

at fair value through profit or loss 467,739 216,330
Met change in unrealized appreciation on financial
assets and labilities at fair value through profit

or loss 2,626,040 3,830,320
Met foreign currency gain'{loss) on cash and cash
equivalents 154 (&8}
Total net gains on investments 3,093,933 4,046,562

Operating expenses

Distnibutor Fees b3 248,643 241,643
Manager Support Service Provider Fees b 54.080 50,733
Investment Manager Fees 8 64,825 65,259
Administration fees 5 RG.999 0,01
Professional fees ) 34,121 96,703
Other fees 40,603 62,828
Fee Agent Fees b 51,860 52,207
Agent Member Company Fees 2 4,322 4,350
Trustee fees b 1,530 10,000
Total operating ¢xpenses 589083 673,724
Increase in net assets attributable to the holder of
redeemable units from operations 2,503,950 3,372,838

See accompanyving notes to the financial statenents.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to the Holder of Redeemable Units

For the year ended January 31, 2025
{Stated in United States dollars)

For the vear ended  For the year ended
January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024

UsD UsD
MNet assets attributable to the holder of redecmable
units at the beginning of the vear 42,837 467 47,567,669
Issue of redeemable units 170816 -
Repurchase of redeemable units (2,698 803) (8.103.040)
Increase in net assets attributable 1o the holder of
redeemable units from operations 2,503,950 3372838
Met assets attributable to the holder of redeemahble
units at the end of the vear 42,813,430 42,837,467

See accompanying notes to the financial stalemenis.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended January 31, 2025
{&tated in Univted States dollars)

For the vear ended  For the vear ended
January 31, 2025 January 31, 2024

UsD UsD

Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to the holder of
redeemable units from operations 2,503,950 3,372,838
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets
attributable to the holder of units from
operations to cash provided by operating

activities:
Purchases of investment in the Selected Fund - { 10,000)
Proceeds from disposition of investment in the

Selected Fund 3,150,000 8,450,000
Met realized gain on financial assets and liabilities

at fair value through profit or loss (467,739) (216,330}

Met change m unrealized appreciation on iinancial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss {2.626,040) (3.830,320)
Decrease in prepayments and other assels 10,243 40,781
Decrease in administration fees pavable (247) (22,192)
Increase in Professional fees payable 2916 22,391
{ Decrease )/ inerease in Distributor fiees payable {13.846) 3,182
Increase/(decrease) in Fee Agent fees payable 12,676 (332)
Increase/{decrease) in Agent Member Company

fees payable 1,056 {(27)
{Decrease)/increase in Manager Support Service

Provider fees pavable {5, 798) 1,700
Decrease in Investment Manager fees payable (174} (415)
{Decrease ) inerease in Trustee fees payable {7.977) 10,040
Increase in other pavables | 489 1,621
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,560,509 7,822,597

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable wnits 170,816 -
Payment on repurchase of redecmable units (2,698, 803) (8.103,040)
Increase/{decrease) in redemption payahle 32,145 (14,159
Met cash wsed in financing activities {2,495,842) (8.117.199)
Met increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 64,667 (294,302)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the yvear 1,776,261 2,070,563
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the vear 1 840,928 1,776,261

See gocompanying notes fo the financial stalesents,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended January 31, 2025
{Stated in United States doflars)

1. Incorporation and background information

Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage Strategy Fund (the “Series Trust™) is a series
trust of UBS Universal Trust {Cayman) 11 (the “Trust™), an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a
master trust deed dated December 2, 2003, under Cayman Islands law. The Serics Trust was established
pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated February 24, 2020 and made between Elian Trustee (Cayman)
Limited (the “Trustee™), a trust company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands, and the UBS
Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Manager™). The principal office of the Trustee and therefore the
Series Trust is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY 1-9005, Cayman Islands. All Unitholders
are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by, and are deemed to have notice of, the provisions of the Master
Trust Deed and any trust deed supplemental thereto.

The Man AHL Active Balanced (the “Selected Fund™) aims to generate capital growth over the medium to
long term by providing dynamic exposure to a range of assets and to provide an excess return stream with a
stable level of volatility regardless of market conditions. Such excess return stream refers to a return in
excess of that which would be provided by investment in high-quality, shorn-dated government bills.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to generate capital growth by investing substantially all of
the assets of the Serics Trust into the | Class Shares of the Selected Fund, which invests in (among other
things) global equity indices futures and bond futures using a proprietary quantitative model.

The Administrator of the Series Trust is MUFG Fund Serviees (Cayman) Limited (the *Administeator™).

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Ltd (the “Investment
Manager™).

The Manager has authorised Daiwa Securities Co, Lid. to act as a distributor of the units in Japan. The
Manager may appoint further distnbutors of the units i future (each a “Distributor” and collectively the
*Distributors™).

The Fee Agent of the Series Trust is UBS AG. London Branch (the “Fee Agent™)
UBS Securities Japan Co., Ltd acts as the Agent Member Company (the “Agent Member Company™).

Daiwa Asset Management (Japan) Co. Lud., acts as the Manager Support Service Provider (the “Manager
Support Service Provider™).

Final Reprrchase Day

The Series Trust will continue until the earlier of January 31, 2027 and the earliest practicable repurchase
day following the occurrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the “Final Repurchase Day™), unless
terminated carlier in accordance with the provisions of the Supplemental Trust Deed.

The units are compulsorily repurchased upon the first to occur of any of the following:
i) the Net Asset Value on any valuation day is USDS 1,000,000 or less and on that valuation day or
thercafter the Manager determines that all of the units should be compulserily repurchased by giving

notice to all unitholders: or

{ii) the Trustee and the Manager agree that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased, (cach a
“Compulsory Repurchase Event™).
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Fimancial Statements

For the year ended January 31, 2025
(Srated in United States dollars)

1. Incorporation and background information {continued)
Final Repurchase Day feantinued)

Upon the occurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final Repurchase
Day at the final repurchase price per unit. The final repurchase price per unit is calculated by the
Administrator in its sole discretion in accordance with the Offering Memorandum and the Appendix 34 as
the Met Asset Value per unit on the Final Repurchase Day (or if such day is not also a valuation day the
immediately preceding valuation day). Repurchase Day is cach dealing day which is also a day on which no
Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from time to time
determine in respect of the Series Trust, Unitholder is able 1o receive an amount in respect of each unit
repurchased on any Repurchase Day prior to the Final Repurchase Day cqual to the Net Asset Value per
unit as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day is not alse a valuation day the
immediately preceding valuation day) (the “Repurchase Price™), There is no repurchase fee applicd to the
Repurchase Price in respect of each unit being repurchased.

On March 19, 2023, UBS Group AG (“UBS™) agreed to acquire Credit Swisse Group AG (“Credit Suisse™)
following intervention by the Swiss Federal Depantment of Finance, the Swiss National Bank and the Swiss
Financial Market Supervisory Aunthority (FINMA).

On June 12, 2023, UBS Group AG announced the legal closing of the acquisition of Credit Suisse Group
AG by way of a statutory merger. As a result of the ¢losing, Credit Suisse Group AG eeased to exist, and
Credit Swisse AG became a direet whollv-owned subsidiary of UBS Group AG. The Merger was completed
with effect from May 31, 2024,

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on May 28, 2025,
2. Material accounting policies
fa) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards (“1FRS")
and interpretations adopted by the Imtermational Accounting Standards Board (“TASBE™).

) Basis of measurement

The functional and presentation curreney of the fnancial statements is the United States dollar and not
the local currency of the Cayman [slands, reflecting the fact that the units of the Series Trust are issued
and repurchased in United States dollars.

The financial statements are prepared on a fair value basis for financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") including investments in Selected Fund, Other financial assets and
liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities are stated at amontised cost or historical cost.

Lse of estimates and fudgements

o

fc,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, habilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates,

Estimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on an ongomg basis, Revisions 1o accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Information abowt significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant ¢ffect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements are described in Note 9.

105/224



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the yvear ended Januwary 31, 2025
{Srated in United States doflars)

2.  Material accounting policies (continued)
() Foreign curvency translotion

Transactions in forcign currencies are translated 1w United States dollars at the foreign currency
exchange rate muling at the date of the transaction. Monctary assets and labilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated to United States dollars at the foreign currency-closing exchange rate at
the reporting dates, Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at fair value are translated af the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.

Foreign curmency exchange differences ansing on translation and realised gains and losses on disposals
or settlements of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income,

fe) Aecounting policy and disclosures

(1) Standards, amendments and interpretations that is effective for the financial year beginning
February 1, 2024.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
herein, These policies have been consistently applied 1o all the periods presented, unless otherwise
stated. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Finangial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). The preparation of financial statements in accordance with [FRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and requires the Trustee and the Manager to
exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust’s accounting policies.

(i) MNew standards, amendments and imerpretations effective after February 1, 2024 and have not been
early adopted

A number of new standards, amendments 10 standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after February |, 2024, and have not been early adopted in preparing these
financial statements. MNone of these are expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements of the Series Trust.

() Fincaicial instramenis
il Recognition and initial measurement

The Series Trust imitially recognises financial assets and financial habilities at FYTPL on the trade
date, which is the date at which the Series Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the date on which
they are onginated,

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

106/224



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended January 31, 2025
{Stated in Unived Stares dollars)

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
i Finarcial instraments {contined)

(i) Classiffcation and subsequent measurement

Classification of financial asscts

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortiscd cost or
FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured @ amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

e it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assers 1o collect contraciual cash
flows; and

# its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest.

All other financial assets of the Series Trust are measured at FVTPL.
The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models,

»  Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, This financial asset 1s
held to collect contractual cash flow.

# Other business model: this includes investments in Selected Fund. These financial assets are
managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking
place or based on the net asset value per unit obtained from their respective administrator,
which management deems 1o approximate fair value,

Beclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Series Trust
were 1o change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected
financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting year following the

change in the business model.

Classification of financial labilitics

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL,

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derccognition is also recognised i profit or loss,

Financial liabilitics at amortised cost: This includes investment manager fees payable,
administration fees payable, professional fees payable, distributor foes pavable, fee agent fees
payable, agent member company fees payable, manager support service provider fees pavable,
redemption payable, trustee fees payable and other payables.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2025
{Stared in United States dollars)

1. Material accounting policies (continued)
() Financial nstrements {continied)

fif)  Fair valwe measurement principles

*Fair Value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Series Trust has access at that date. The fair
value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in
am active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as “active’ if transactions for the asset
or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis. The Series Trust measures instruments quoted in an active market at a close price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, the Series Trust uses valuation technigues that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
qecount in pricing a transaction,

Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the risk-
return factors inherent in the financial instrument, The Series Trust calibrates valuation technigues
and tests them for validity using prices from observable current market transactions in the same
instrument or based on other available observable market data,

Fair value Merarchy

IFRS 13 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritises the inputs to valuation techniques used 1o
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for adentical assets or habilities (Level | measurements) and the lowest priority 1o
measurements involving significant unobservable inputs {Level 3 measurements). The three levels
of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

# Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Series Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date.,

#  Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

*  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability (lowest among hicrarchy).

The level in fair value hicrarchy within a fair measurement in its entirety falls 15 based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

fivi  Amortised cost measurement

The *amortizsed cost” of a financial assel or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
assel or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus
or mines the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance,
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2. Material accounting policies (continued)
() Financial instraments fcomtintied)

vl Impaivarent

The Series Trust recognises loss allowances for ECL on financial assets measured at amortised
cost on 12-month or lifetime basis.

Impairment on cash, subscriptions receivable and prepayments and other assets has been measured
on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Series
Trust considers the credit nisk 15 low or not matenal as a whole based on the external credit ratings
of the counterparties, On this basis, there was no impairment recorded by the Series Trust for the
vear ended January 31, 2025,

i) Offserting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of
Financial Position when, and only when, the Serics Trust has a legally enforceable right to offsct
the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultancously.

As at January 31, 2025 and, all financial assets and liabilities are shown at their gross amounts as
none met the criteria for financial instrument offsetting, and therefore have not been offset in the
Statement of Financial Position,

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for net change in unrealized and realized gains
on investments im Selected Fund.

fvii} Derecogmition

The Series Trust derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Series Trust neither transfers nor retains substantially all the nsks and newards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. Any interest in transferred financial
assets that qualify for derecognition that is ercated or retained by the Series Trust is recognised as
a separate assel or hability in the Statement of Financial Position.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (and
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised), and the consideration
received (including any new asset obrained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income,

The Series Trust derecognises a financial hability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss,
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2. Material accounting policies (continued)

() Financial Instriasents (comiinued)
{viii) Specific insiruments

Cash and cash equivalents

This includes cash and foreign cash deposited with banks, which is subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and are held for meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

Investments in Selected Fund

Investments in Selected Fund are classified into the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss category and are carried at their net asset value as reported by the Selected Fund's
administrators,

Where definitive values are not available, estimated values of the Series Trust's mvestments in
Selected Funds may be used. For the purposes of subscriptions and repurchases, no adjustments
are made to such values, notwithstanding any subsequent adjustment to the estimated valuation
provided in respect of the relevant invested fund.

As a result of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the estimated carrving values For the
aforementioned securities may differ from the values that would have been used had a ready
market for the investments existed, and the differences could be material.

fez) frferest inconne

Interest income and expense are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive [ncome as it acerucs,
using the onginal effective interest rate of the instrument caleulated at the acquisition or ongination
date.

th) Net incomelfloss) from financial instruments at FVTPL

Net income/{loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL are comprised of gains/({losses) arising from
disposals and changes in the fair value of investments.

{i} Fees and other expenses

Fees and other expenses are recognised in profitor loss on an accrued basis,
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2. Material accounting policies (continued)
{f} Redeemable wnits

The Series Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder option. The Series Trust classifies its
puttable instruments as liabilitics in accordance with [AS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments:
Presentation.

The amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to
be classified as equity where certain strict eriteria are met. Those eriteria include:

e The puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets:
« The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class featsres must be identical;

« There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the
abligation on the issuer o repurchase; and

s The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially
on the profit or loss of the issuer,

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust’s units have been classified as equity at January 31,
2025.

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the
Series Trust’s total equity.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if
the holder exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust,

Linits are 1ssued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust s total equity per umit at the tme of
1ssue or repurchase. The Senes Trust's equity per unit s caleulated by dividing the total equity by the
total number of outstanding units.

3. Investments in Selected Fund

The Series Trust has conchuded that the unlisted open-ended investment funds in which it invests, but that it
does not consolidate, meet the definition of structured entities because:

- the voting rights in these funds are not dominant rights in deciding who controls them because the rights
relate to administrative tasks only;

each fund’s activitics are restricted by its prospectus: and
- the funds have narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment opportunities to investors,

The table which shows the types of structured entities that the Series Trust does not consolidate but in
which it holds interest,

Interest held by the Series
Tvpe of structured entity  Nature and purpose Trust

To manage assets on behalf of third party

investors and generate fees for the investment

manager. These vehicles are financed through % of intergst inthe investee
Investment funds the issues of units to investors funds
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3. lovestments in Selected Fund {continued)

As of lanuary 31, 2025 and 2024, the Selected Fund was denominated in United States dollars. Summarised
information reflecting the Series Trust's investments in Sclected Fund as of January 31, 2025 and 2024 is
detailed below.

s
%o of
% of interest
inberest in the % of
in the imvesiee Series
Fair investes: funds Trust's  Redemption  Lock
Strategy/Underdying Fund Cost Value funds  USD Class  net assets permitted -up Level
Multi-strategy:
MAN AHL ACTIVE
BALANCED 1 USD 34448,000 41,166,629  14.56% 99.99%  95.15% Daily nfa Level 2
2024
L
%o of interest
inlerest in the %o ol
in the invesiee Senes
Fair investee funds Trust's Redemption Lock
Stratepy/Linderlving Fund Cost Value funds  USD Clags  net assgls permitted =Ly Level
Multi-strategy:
MAN AHL ACTIVE
BALANCED I USD 37.130,2 41222850 11.01% 100,000 96,23% Daily mfa Level 2

4. Share capital

USD Class redeemable units were imitially offered to investors during the initial offer peniod at the ssue
price and will be issued on the initial closing day, subject to the minimum issue size.

From and including the initial closing day, redeemable units of each class of redeemable units will be
available for subscription by investors at a price equal 1o the Net Asset Value per unit of the applicable
class of redeemable units on cach dealing day, subject to the minimum subscription, The Met Asset Value
per unit for each class of redeemable units are caleulated as ot the relevant dealing day (or if that dealing
day is not alse a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day). The minimum subscription
amount is | unit and thereafler subscriptions may be made in | unit increments. The aggregate subscription
amounts are rounded down to the nearest whole unit. There are no subscription fee payable.

Under the terms of the Trust deed, unitholders are the only persons recognised by the Trustee as having any
right, title or interest in or to Redeemable units registered in their name and the Trustee will only recognise
such unmitholders as absolute owner of the Redeemable units and will not be bound by any notice to the
contrary. The Trustee is not bound to take notice of or to see to the execution of any trust or, save as
provided under the Trust deed or save as by some court of competent jurisdiction orders, 1o recognise any
trust or equity or other interest affecting the title to any redeemable wnits,
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4. Share capital (continued)

The issue and fully paid capital comprises:

2025 2024
USD Class Units
Number of units
Units at beginning of the year 421,194 506,541
Units subscribed 1,600 -
Units redeemed (25.435) (55.347)
Units at end of the year 397,359 421,194

Investors may subseribe for redeemable units of a class of redeemable units during the initial offer period
by sending a completed subscription agreement to the Administrator so as to be received by the
Administrator by no later than 7.00 p.m. (Tokyo time) on the last day of the initial offer period or by such
other times and/or days as the Manager may in its sole discretion determine.

Redeemable units are issued on the initial closing day or the relevant dealing day. as applicable.

Applicants for redeemable units should note that none of the Trustee, the Adminisirator, the Investment
Manager nor any of their duly authorised agents or delegates will accept responsibility for any loss caused
as a result of the illegibility or non-receipt of any application sent by electronic mail or other electronic
means as agreed in advance with the Administrator or for any loss caused in respect of any action taken as a
consequence of instructions believed in good faith to be signed by properly authorised persons,

The Investment Manager reserves the right to decling any application 1o subscribe for redeemable units in
whole or in part in its absolute discretion and redeemable units which have been issued on a dealing day but
for which a properly completed application and payment, as described above, is not timely received may be
compulsonily repurchased for mil consideration.

The Trustee or its delegates reserve the right to request such information as is necessary to verify the
identity of an  applicant (or transferee) of redecmable  units, the identity of their beneficial
owners'controllers (where applicable) and the source of payment of subscription monies. Where the
circumstances permit, the Trustee or its delegates may be satisfied that full due diligence mav not be
required where an exemption applics under the Anti-Money Laundering Regulations (2020 Revision) of the
Cayman [slands, as amended and revised from time to time or any other applicable law. However, detailed
verification information may be required prior 1o the payment of any preceeds from or any transfer of an
interest in redeemable units,

Investors may make a repurchase request to the Administrator on cach repurchase day in respect of
redecmable units of a class of redeemable units for which subscription proceeds have been received by the
Administrator. [n order to make a repurchase request, a unitholder must submit a completed repurchase
notice in the form or other electronic means as agreed in advance with the Administrator specifying the
number of redeemable units to be repurchased so as o be received by the Admimstrator by no later than
7.00 p.m. (Tokyo time) on the repurchase notice day immediately preceding the relevant repurchase day, or
by such other time and/or days as the Investment Manager may, in its sole discretion, determine (the
“Repurchase Notice Deadling™),

The repurchase price per redeemable units of a class of redeemable units are caleulated as the Net Asset
Value per redeemable unit of such class of redeemable units as at the relevant repurchase day {or if that
repurchase day is not also a valuation day then on the immediately preceding wvaluation day) (the
“Repurchase Price™).

Mo conversion of redeemable units is permitted in respect of the Series Trust
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5.  Fees and expenses
Adminisiraior Fee

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.08% on the first USD 250,000,000 of the net assets, 0.0T%
on the next USD 250,000,000 of the net assets and 0L06% on the net assets over USD 500,000,000, subject
to a monthly minimum fee of USD 7,000, The fees camed by the Administrator during the year ended
January 31, 2025 and 2024, and owtstanding fees payable to the Administrator as of January 31, 2025 and
2024, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial
Position, respectively.

Praofessional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the year ended January 31, 2025 and
2024, and owstanding fees payable to the Transfer Agent as of January 31, 20235 and 2024, have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

6. Operating expenses

The Series Trust is responsible for all other normal operating expenses including audit and legal fees and
other charges including the expenses of acquiring and disposing of investments, These expenses are accrued
throughout the year for which the Series Trust receives the related benefit and are recorded as general
administrative expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

7. Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it from all local
income, profits and capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063, Mo such taxes are levied in the Cayman
Islands at the present time,

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and
capital gains. Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. No withholding tax expense was paid or payable during the year ended January 31,
2025 and 2024,

The Selected Fund may choose to invest in securities domiciled in countries other than Cayman [slands.
Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable o
non-residents including the Selected Fund. These capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-
assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Selected Fund’s broker on a
‘withhaolding” basis.

In accordance with 1AS 12 = Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it
is probable that the tax laws of foreign countrics require a tax hability 10 be assessed on the Series Trust’s
capital gains sourced from such forcign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full
knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The tax liability is then measured at the amount expected to
be paid to the relevant taxation authorities using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way
enacted tax law is applied 1w offshore investment Series Trusts. This creates uncertainty about whether or
not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax
liahilities management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which
could influence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax
authorities.

As at January 31, 2025 and 2024, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a liability
1o record for any unrecognized tax benefit in the accompanyving financial statements, While this represents
the Manager’s best estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes
on capital gains earned by the Series Trust. This could happen without giving prior warning, possibly on a
retrospective basis, and could result in a loss o the Sernes Trust,
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8. Related party transactions

Partics are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decistons. The Trustee, Fee
Agent. Manager, Investment Manager, Distributor, Manager Suppont Service Provider, and Agent Member
Company are all related parties to the Series Trust. All fees are paid from the assets of the Series Trust by
the administrator unless otherwise noted,

Trisice Fees

The Trustee is entitled to receive a fixed annual fee of USD 10,000 per annum payable annually. The
Trustee is also entitled to be reimbursed for all out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the
performance of s duties, The fees camed by the Trustee durimg the year ended January 31, 2025 and 2024,
and outstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of January 31, 2025 and 2024, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively .

Investment Manager Fee

The Investment Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.1 5% per annum of the Net Asset Value acerued on
and caleulated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The fees carned by the Investment
Manager during the vear ended January 31, 2025 and 2024, and outstanding fees pavable to the Investment
Managzer as of January 31, 2025 and 2024, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent is entitled to receive a fee of 0.12% per annum of the Net Asset Value (the “Operational
Costs Fees™) acerued on and caleulated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. The
Operational Costs Fees are payable by the Administrator on behalf of the Trustee, The fees eamed by the
Fee Agent during the year ended Janvary 31, 2025 and 2024, and outstanding fees pavable to Fee Agent as
of January 31, 2025 and 2024, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the Investment Manager
fees, audit fees, formation expenses, distribution fees, administration fees, custody fees, any broker fees
relating to security transactions, any legal and auditing costs that are not included m the audit fees and
expenses, annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government bodies and ageneies,
any insurance costs, any costs relating o the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 34 and other similar
offering decuments and the costs relating to the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such
documents and any taxes relating to the purchase or disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs,
licensing, tax reporting, anti-money laundering compliance and monitoring, expenses related to the
termination or the liquidation of the Series Trust and any other extraordinary costs and expenses that would
not usually occur,

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent is
liable for any outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs shall
be retained by the Fee Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust.
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8. Related party transactions (continued)
Muanager Fees

The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee of USD 5,000 per annum payable monthly in arrears,
The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the Manager Fees. For the avoidance of doubt, the Manager may
decide in its sole discretion to reduce or waive the payment of the Manager fees. The fees camed by the
Manager during the year ended January 31, 2025 and 2024, and outstanding fees payable to the Manager as
of January 31, 2025 and 2024, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively,

Agemt Menmber C Y

The Agent Member Company will be entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value,
accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable quanterly in ar rears. The fees earned by the
Agent Member Company during the year ended January 31, 2025 and 2024, and outstanding fees payable 1o
the Agent Member Company as of January 31, 2025 and 2024, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

Manager Support Service Provider

The Manager Support Service Provider will be entitled to receive, acerued on and calculated as at cach
Valuation Day:

(i} if the Net Asset Value per Unit attributable to such class of units over the Caleulation Period has
increased by less than 2% (using the Net Asset Value per Unit afier the reinvestment of gross
distributions), in respect of each Caleulation Valuation Day, a fee of 0,05% per annum of the Net Asset
Walue attributable to such class of units; or

(i1} i all other cases, a fec of 0.20% per annum of the Net Asset Value attnibutable to such ¢lass of units, in
both cases acerued on an actual / 363 day count fraction and payable monthly in arrears. The Fee shall
be paid within a reasonable period from the end of the month for which payment is due. For the
avoidance of doubt, on each Valustion Day prior to the first Caleulation Valuation Day, the Fee will be
caleulated in accordance with limb (i) above.

The fees camed by the Manager Support Service Provider during the year ended Janwary 31, 2025 and
2024, and outstanding fees payable to the Manager Support Service Provider as of January 31, 2025 and
2024, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial
Position, respectively,

Distribution Fees
The Distributor is entitled to receive acerued on and caleulated as at each valuation day:

(i) if the Net Asset Value per unit attributable to such class of units over the caleulation peried has
increased by less than 2% in respect of each calculation valuation day, a fee of 0.40% per annum of the
MNet Asset Value attributable to such class of units; or

(ii}) in all other cases, a fee of 0.75% per annum of the Net Asset Value attributable to such class of units,

The fees camed by the Distributor during the year ended Januwary 31, 2025 and 2024, and outstanding fees
payable w the Distributor as of January 31, 2025 and 2024, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively,
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust’s investments portfolio comprises solely of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust’s activities
expose it o a vanety of Orancial nsks: market risk (including currency sk, mterest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of these risks is carried out by the Manager under
policies approved by the Trustee.

The Series Trust may be materially affected by the actions of another entity investing in the Selected Fund.
For example, if another unitholder of the Selected Fund repurchases some or all of its interests i the
Selected Fund, the Selected Fund and, in tumn, the Series Trust, may experience higher pro rata operating
expenses, thereby producing lower returns. Similarly, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due to
repurchases from its other unitholders, resulting in increased portfolio risk. The Selected Fund may restrict
its investment activities or be precluded from investing in certain instruments duc o regulatory restrictions
on certain of its direct or indirect investors or otherwise, which may have an adverse effect on the
performance of the Selected Fund, and, in turn, the Series Trust,

(A) Market Risk
(i} Currency Risk

All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and other assets and habihties held by the Senes
Trust are denominated in U.S. Dollars, thus the Manager believes that the Series Trust has little curreney
risk exposure, and is not subject to risk due to direct fluctuations in the prevailing levels of foreign currency
Tles,

Investment in the Selected Fund in which the Series Trust invests may be denominated or quoted in
currencics other than the functional currency of the Series Trust. For this reason, changes in foreign
currency exchange rates can affect the value of the Series Trust’s pontfolio,

(i) frterest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that prices of fixed income securitics generally inerease when interest mtes
decline and decrease when interest rates increase. Prices of longer-term securities generally change more in
response to interest rate changes than prices of shorter-term securities. The Series Trust may lose money if
short-term or long-term interest rates rise shamply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Series
Trust management. When interest rates fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication
of the degree of change in the debt price of the debt security. The bigger the security s duration value, the
larger the change in the price of the debt security for a given movement in interest rates may be, Therefore,
the Net Asset Value may fluctuate.

The Senes Trust does not have direet exposure to interest rate risk, however has indirect exposure o
interest rate through its investment in the Selected Fund.

The wvield on the Selected Fund's (and indirectly, the Series Trust’s) mvestments may be sensitive to
changes in prevailing interest rates, which may result in a mismatch between the Selected Fund *s asset yield
and borrowing rates and consequently reduce or climinate income derived from its mvestments,

If intercst rates increase, prices of fixed income securitics generally decline, reducing the value of the
Selected Fund's (and indirectly, the Series Trust’s) investments, A major change i interest rates or a
significant decline in the market value of the Selected Fund's (and indirectly, the Trust’s) investments, or
ather market event, could cause the value of the investments of the Master Fund's investors {and indirectly
the unitholders” investments in the Senes Trust), or its yield, to decline,
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9.  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
(A) Market Risk (continued)

fir} fnterest Rate Risk feontinued)

If interest rates change, the values of longer-duration debt securities are usually subject to greater change
than the values of shoner-duration debt securities,

The Series Trust may invest in fixed income securities through its indirect exposure © the imvestments of
the Selected Fund. Anmy changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of future rates may
result in an increase or decrease in the value of the securities held.

The majority of the Series Trust’s financial assets are non-interest bearing and, as a result, the Series Trust
is not subject o significant amounts of risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest
rates. The imterest bearing financial instruments are represented mainly by cash amounting 10
USD 1,840,928 (2024: USD 1.776,261).

At January 31, 2025 and 2024, if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower with all other
variables held constant, the net assets would have been approximately USD 920 (2024: USD 888) higher or
lower, as a result of higher or lower interest income on deposits with the Fund's Prime Brokers.

fiii) Market Price Risk

The market price of sccurities held by the Selected Fund may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or
unpredictably. Securities may decline in value due to factors affecting securities markets generally or
particular industrics represented in the securities markets, The value of a security may decline due to
general market conditions which are not specifically related to a particular company, such as real or
perceived adverse economic conditions, supply and demand for particular securities or instruments, changes
in the general owlook for corporate eamings, changes in interest or currency rates or adverse investor
sentiment. They may alse decline due to factors which affect a particular industry or industries, such as
labor shortages or increased production costs and competitive conditions within an industry. During a
general downtum in the secunties markets, multiple asset classes may dechne in value simultaneously,
Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed income securitics.

An increase in market prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at January 31, 2025 and 2024,
would have increased the Net Assets by USD 411,666 (2024: USD 412,229). A decrease of 1% would, all
¢lse being equal, have an equal but opposite effect.
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9.  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
(A) Market Risk (continued)

fiiid Market Price Risk (continmed)

The following table summarizes the geographical concentration in the market price risk of the Selected
Fund at January 31, 2025 as a percentage of net assets of the Series Trust,

Countries of investment by the Series Trust

Fair Value

Yo of Net Assets

Investments in securities
Australia
Canada

China

European Linion
France
Germany

Hong Kong
Italy

India

Japan

Singapore

South Affrica
South Korea
Sweden
Switzerland
Taiwan

United Kingdom
United States

Total Investments in securities

8,040,786 2.54%
217,269 0.0%%
69,340 0.02%
491,824 0.17%
102,803,802 36.36%
(277.330) (0 10%)
35,002 0.01%
(109, 148) (0.04%)
717 0.00%
50,777,163 17.96%
19,529 0.01%
(12,731) (.00
G601 0.02%
417,887 0.15%
ROB 508 0.32%
4,317 0.00%
327.5371 0.12%
92,207,646 3261%
155,999,007 00.54%

The following table summarizes the geographical concentration in the market price nisk of the Selected
Fund at January 31, 2024 as a percentage of net assets of the Series Trust.

Countries of investment hv the Series Trust

Fair Value

Yo of Net Assets

Investments in securities
Australia
Canada

China

European Union
France
Ciermany

Hong Kong
ltaly

Japan
Metherlands
Singapore

South Africa
South Korea
Sweden
Switzerland
Taiwan

United Kingdom
United States

Total Investments in securities
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RY9S.635 0.24%
048,931 0.25%,
(95,663) (0.03%)
455,292 0.12%
114,432,633 30.56%
Giah, 309 (. 18%
(340,826) (0.09%)
958,381 0.26%
4,460,851 1.19%
610,021 (0.16%
(2.819) 0.00%,
(27 .485) (0.01%)
(54,282) (0000 %)
158,020 0.04%
463,977 0.12%
(32,276) (0,01%)
941,943 0.25%
210,069,756 36.11%
33451 1 488 89.33%
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2025
{Stared in United States dollars)

9.  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
(B) Credit Risk

Changes in an 1ssuer’s credit rating or the market"s pereeption of an issuer’s ¢reditworthiness may affect the
value of the Series Trust’s investments in the Selected Fund. The degree of credit risk depends on both the
financial condition of the issuet and the terms of the obligation.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the credit risk associated with debt
instruments that may be held by the Selected Fund. All transactions in listed securities held by the Selected
Fund are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal,
as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a
purchase once the seeurities have been received by the broker, The trade will fail if either party fails to meet
their obligation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust™s credit position on an on-going basis.

The maximum exposure to eredit risk of all financial assets of the Series Trust as of January 31, 2025 and
2024 is the carmving amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position, No collateral or other credit
enhancements are held by the Series Trust. None of these assets are impaired or past due.

The clearing and depository operations for the Sclected Fund’s security  transactions are mainly
concentrated with their custodian. The Series Trust minimizes its exposure to credit risk by conducting
transactions with an established and reputable broker, which is Musubishi UFJ Investor Services Banking
{Luxembourg) 5.A. and as at Janwary 31, 2025 and 2024, credit rating was A (2024 A) as published by
S&P. At January 31, 2025 and 2024, substantially all cash is placed at this broker.

The carrying amounts of financial asscts best represent the maximum credit risk exposure at the reporting
date. This also relates to financial assets carried at amortized cost. as they have a short-term to maturity.

As at January 31, 2025 and 2024, the Series Trust's financial assets exposed to credit risk amounted to the
following:

January 31, 2025 Januwary 31, 2024

Investments in Selected Fund 41,166,629 41,222 850
Cash and cash cquivalents 1,540,928 1,776,261
Prepayments and other assets - 10,243
LSDr 43,007,557 USD 43,009,354
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended January 31, 2025
{Stated in Unived States dollars)

9.  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)

(C) Liguidity Risk
Liguidity risk exists when particular imvestments are difficult w0 purchase or scll. The Series Trust's
investments in illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell

the illiquid securities at an advantageous time of price.

The table below analyzes the Series Trust's financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the
remaining peried at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,

3 months 3 months Total

As at January 31, 2025 or less to | year
Administration fees pavable 7,500 - 7.800
Professional fees payable 25,307 - 25,307
Distributor fees payable 14.841 - 14.841
Fee Agent fees payable 17,268 - 17,268
Agent Member Company fees pavable 1,439 - 1,439
Manager Support Service Provider fees payvable I.855 - I.855
Investment Manager fees payable 5,560 . 5,560
Redemption payable 32,145 - 32,145
Trustee fees payable 7,023 - 7.023

Other payables §0,799 - 80,199

194,127 - 194,127
3 months 3 months Total

_As at January 31, 2024 or less 10 | year
Admimstration fees payvable 8,137 - 8.137
Professional fees payable 22,391 - 22,391
Distributor fiees payable 24,687 - 24,687
Fee Agent fees payable 4,592 - 4,592
Agent Member Company fees payable 383 - 383
Manager Support Service Provider fees payable 7.653 . 7.653
Investment Manager fiees payable 5,734 - 5,734
Trustee fees pavable |5,000 - 15,000
Other payables 79.310 - 79.310
171,587 - 171,587

The Manager monitors the Series Trust's liquidity position on an on-going basis, and does not invest in
illiquid assets.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended January 31, 2023
fatared in United States dollars)

9.  Financial instruments and associated risks {continued}
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
(C) Liguidity Risk (continued)

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed o the liquidity risk associated with
umitholder repurchases in accordance with the terms in the Sclected Fund's Prospectus. The Senes Trust is
managed to include liquid investments sufficient to meet normal liquidity needs although substantial
repurchases of units in the Series Trust could require the Sclected Fund to liquidate its investments more
ritpidly than otherwise desirable in order to raise cash for the repurchases, These factors conld adversely
affect the value of the units repurchased and the valuation of the units that remain outstanding and the
liquidity of the Series Trust"s remaining assets if more liquid assets have been sold 1o meer the repurchases.

There were no repurchase fees applied in respect to the Selected Fund for the vear ended January 31, 20235
and 2024,

() Risk Management

The Series Trust’s Investment Manager's team is supported by certain risk management systems and
professionals, which provide regular reporting on the Sclected Fund and quantitative risk measures.

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holder of units.

The amount of net assets attributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a daily basis as the
Series Trust is subject to daily subseriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unitholder. The Series
Trust’s objective when managing capital 15 1o safepuard the Series Trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for the unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a
strong capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Series Trust's policy s to perform the fallowing:

+  Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and adjust the
amount of distributions the Senes Trust pays 1o the holder of units,

+  Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constintional documents of the Series Trust.,
The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holder of units.
9.2 Additional Series Trust’s Risks
(A) Custody Risk

Neither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust’s investments in the
Selected Fund. The custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected 1o act as custodians may become
insolvent, causing the Series Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians.

(B) Risk of Indemnification

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Investment Manager and other parties, and cach of their
respective agents, principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Series Trust under certain eircumstances which may result in a decrease in Net Asset Value per
unit,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended January 31, 2025
{Stared in United States dollars)

9.  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.2 Additional Series Trust’s Risks (continued)
(C) Settlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United
States, the European Union and Japan. Foreign settlement and clearance procedures and trade regulations
also may involve certain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically
associated with the settlement of United States investments, At times, settlements in certain foreign
countries have not kept pace with the number of securities transactions. These problems may make it
difficult for the Sefected Fund and ultimately, the Manager to carry out transactions for the account of the
Series Trust, IF the Manager cannot settle or s delaved in settling a purchase of securitics, 1t may miss
attractive investment opportunities and certain of the Series Trust’s assets may be uninvested with no retum
earned thereon for some period.

If the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a sale of securities,
the Series Trust may lose money if the value of the underlying security then declines or, if it has contracted
tor seldl the security to another party: the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurred,

(D} Derivatives

The Series Trust's assets are not used to directly invest in derivatives. The series trust may be exposed to
risks associated with investing in derivatives through its investment in the Selected Fund, These risks
include;

«  Credit Bisk — the nsk that the counterparty (the party on the other side of the transaction) on a
derivative transaction will be unable to honor its financial obligation to the Series Trust.

*  Leverage Risk — the nsk associated with certain types of investments or trading strategics that
relatively small market movements may result in large changes in the value of an investment. Centain
investments or trading strategies that involve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the
amount originally invested.,

»  Liguidity Risk — the risk that certain securities may be difficult or impossible to sell at the time that
the seller would like or at the price that the seller believes the security is currently worth,

As of January 31, 2025 and 2024, there were no Series Trust derivative assets and derivative liabilities
subject 1o netting armangements and similar arrangements,

(E

—

Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firm with which the Manager
or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties and
default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Senes Trust, Any such default could result in
material losses to the Series Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the
Series Trust to the counterparties in order to secure cenain transactions. No collateral was pledged by the
Manager during the year ended Janvary 31, 2025 and 2024,

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial
Position.
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For the year ended January 31, 2025
{Stated in United Staves dollars)

9.  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.2 Additional Series Trust’s Risks (continued)
(F) Generated Income and Distributions

There is no guarantee that there will be any generated income. Distributions (if any) may be paid in whole
or in part oul of investment principal attributable to the units or, alternatively. the Generated Income may be
zero, A distribution can in effeet result in a retum of an investor™s initial capital or capital gains thereby
ereding that capital to the extem the distribution exceeds available income. In consequence of this
possibility, investors seeking capital preservation may not achieve this given probable deterioration in the
value of the Series Trust’s investments caused by declining asset values and a retum of capital to investors
by way of distribution. If the Series Trust is not profitable, the Repurchase Price a unitholder receives back
in respect of a repurchase of units may be less than the unitholder®s initial investment.

The Generated Income partially relies on the receipt of distributions paid by the Selected Fund. Should the
Selected Fund fal to pay any distributions or pay less than anticipated, including due to a rise in the non-
treaty tax rate applicable to the Series Trust, then the Series Trust will gain correspondingly less than
investors may previously have expected. Furthermore, if the interest rate at which the distributions received
accrue falls during the vearly period, this may also lead to the Generated Income being lower than expected.

The selected fund did not pay any distributions during the year,

() Mo Interest in the Selected Fund

i’

The return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund. An
investment in units does not give a unitholder a direct interest in the Selected Fund,

(H) Early Termination of the Series Trust

Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for January 31, 2027, the Final
Repurchase Day will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur,

9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation

The Series Trust applies IFRS 13 Fair value measurement and utilizes the last traded market price for its
fair valuation inputs for both financial assets and liabilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis,
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9.  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation (continued)

The fair value of financial assets and liabilitics that are not traded in an active market is determined by
using valwation techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at each period end date. Valuation techniques used for nmon-
standardized financial instruments such as options, currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives,
include the use of comparable recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation technigues
commeonly used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

For mstruments for which there is no active market, the Senes Trust may use internally developed models,
which are usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the
industry. Some of the inputs to these models may not be market abservable and are therefore estimated
based on assumptions. The output of a model s always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot
be determined with certainty, and valuation technigues employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to
the positions the Series Trust holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for
additional factors including model risk, liquidity rsk and counterparty risk,

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements.

The far value hierarchy has the following levels:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

¢ Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 mputs are unobservable inputs for the assct or liability,

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its
entirety, If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustiment based on
unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular
input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the
asset or habality,

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the Administeator,
under advisement of the Manager., The Admimistrator, under advisement of the Manager, considers
observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and
verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevamt
market,
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{Stared in United States dollars)

9.3

Financial instruments and associated risks {continued)

Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation (continued)

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of January 31, 2025 and

2024 in valuing the Series Trust’s financial assets:

{Unianel junsted

Quated Prices in Significant

Active Markets (ither Significant
Financial Assets at Fair for Identical Observable Linobservahle Fair Value at
Value Through Profit Investments Inputs Inputs January 31,
or Loss {Level 1) {Level 2 {Level 3) 2025
Investment in the
Selected Fund
MAN AHL Active
Balanced [ (LS Class) - § 41,166,629 - b 41,166,629
Financial assets, at fair
value through profit or
loss = 5 41,166,629 - b3 41,166,629

{Unadjusted)

Quaoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets Other Significant
Financial Assets at Fair for Identical Observable Unobservable Fair Value at
Value Through Profit Investments Inputs Inputs January 31,
or Loss {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) 2024
Investment in the
Selected Fund
MAKN AHL Active
Balanced [ (USD Class) 5 41222850 5 41,222,850
Financial assets, at Gir
value through profit or
liss - S 41,222.850 - b3 41,222.850

During the year ended January 31, 2025 and 2024, there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3,
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9.3

9.4

Financial instruments and associated risks {continued}
Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation (continued)

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on
quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are
classified within Level 2. These include over-the-counter derivatives and debt securitics. As Level 2
investments include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions,
valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and‘or non-transferability, which are generally based on
available market information.

For purposes of calculating the NAV of the Selected Fund, fixed income securities for which market guotes
are readily available are normally valued on the basis of quotes obtained from established market makers or
pricing services and are classified as Level 2 investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund.
Forward contracts are valued using observable inputs which can generally be cormoborated by market data
and are therefore classified as Level 2 investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund, As of
January 31, 20235 and 2024 all financial assets and habihtes were classified as Level 2 mvesimenis,

Financial assets and labilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

(i) At January 31, 2025 and 2024, cash and all other assets and liabilities (including investments in
Selected Fund, and payables for, investment manager fees, manager support service provider fee, fee
agent fees, distribution fees, transfer agent fees, administrator fees, custody Fees, professional fees and
agent member company fees and other payables) are deemed short-term financial assets and labilities
whose carrving amounts approximate far value because of ther short-term nature,

Investments in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

As of January 31, 2025 the Selected Fund's net asset value was USD 282,751 453, As of January 31, 2025 the
Selected Fund held total investmems of USDr 254,664,596 comprising of fixed income securities {Sovercign
Bonds and Term Deposits) of USD 254,991,333, Futures contract assets of USD 4,088,433 and liabilitics of
USD 3,080,569 and forward contract assets of USD 113,655,738 and liabilities of USD 114,990,239,

The valuation of investments in unconsolidated structured entitics represents the amount the Series Trust
would expect to receive if it were to liquidated or redeem its investments subject to the underlying fund's
liquidity or redemption restrictions and costs.

The rights attached to the Series Trust's holding in the Selected Fund is similar 1o those of other investors.
Subscnptions into the Selected Fund are governed by the nights stpulated i their offenng documents, The
Series Trust has the ability to liquidate or redeem its investments periodically in accordance with the
provisions of the provisions of the Selected Fund’s offering memorandum. Refer to Note | for information
regarding the investment objectives of the Selected Fund.,

Subsequent events

Trustee has evaluated the events and transactions that have occurred through May 28, 2025, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Effective February 1, 2025 through May 28, 2025, there were redemptions of USD 637,177.32.

Trustee noted no items requiring adjustment or additional disclosure in the financial statements.
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2024 12 31

70,894,809 10,199,636
19,286,908 2,774,807
201,625,444 29,007,853
2,923,844 420,653
59,463 8,555
134,704 19,380
294,925,172 42,430,884
2,424,721 348,845
266 38
11,935,706 1,717,190
183,824 26,447
14,604 2,101
484,840 69,754
15,043,961 2,164,375

279,881,211 40,266,510
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393,534,254

(83,477, 265)

(30,175,778)

279,881,211
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56,617,773

(12,009, 874)

(4,341,389)
40,266,510
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2024 12 31

(26,987,830) (3,882,739)
3,443 495
(26,984,387) (3,882,244)
2,518,203 362,294
1,005,777 144,701
64,582 9,291
11,184 1,609
11,521 1,658
2,539 365
111,848 16,092
3,725,654 536,010
534,263 76,864
3,191,391 459,145

(30,175,778) (4,341,389)

131/224



2024 12 31

(30,175,778)

(5,005,027)
338

63,285,583
42,282,162
(15,378)
13,235
(15,145,532)
266
(43,635)
14,021

(285,424)

54,924,831

(83,477, 265)

(83,477, 265)

(28,552,434)

99,447,243

70,894,809

70,894,809

70,894,809

15,075,514
132/224
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(4,341,389)

(720,073)
49

9,104,897
6,083,135

(2,212)
1,904

(2,178,988)
38

(6,278)
2,017

(41,064)

7,902,035

(12,009, 874)

(12,009,874)

(4,107,839)

14,307,475

10,199,636

10,199,636

10,199,636

2,168,914



EDINETCI I
I o o o o o =)
O000oOoOddooooooooOoOaOon

(148,862) (21,417)

133/224



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 12 31
a

74 Canadian 10 Years Bond Futures March 2025 38,465 0.01
34 HSCEI Futures January 2025 13,260 0.01
15 Hang Seng Index Futures January 2025 12,210 0.00
25,470 0.01
54 Topix Index Futures March 2025 141,698 0.05
49 MSCI Sing IX ETS Futures January 2025 457 0.00
206,090 0.07
20,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 15/01/2025 20,691,050 7.39
15,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 17/07/2025 15,328,325 5.48
15,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 18/06/2025 15,359,390 5.49
15,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 21/05/2025 15,383,776 5.49
20,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 24/04/2025 20,546,702 7.34
20,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 26/03/2025 20,589,571 7.36
107,898,814 38.55
15,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 10/04/2025 # 14,830,567 5.30
10,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 15/05/2025 9,847,441 3.52
20,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 17/04/2025 19,758,087 7.06
25,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 24/04/2025 # 24,677,853 8.82
5,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 27/03/2025 # 4,951,090 1.77
20,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 29/05/2025 # 19,661,592 7.02
93,726,630 33.49
201,625,444 72.04
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2024 12 31
- b

11 0 2025 1 31 3 - 0.00
123,484,238 117,148,830 2025 1 16 1 2,099,105 0.75
57 55 2025 1 31 3 - 0.00
2,320,411 1,821,809 2025 1 16 1 39,091 0.01
56 44 2025 1 31 2 - 0.00
3,979,148 600,876,142 2025 1 16 2 148,544 0.05
13,024,737 1,987,566,374 2025 1 31 9 331,396 0.12
2,444,523 3,463,644,000 2025 1 16 1 99,618 0.04
2,717,754 0.97

204,549,288 73.08

135/224



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 12 31
107 Australian 10 Years Bond Futures March 2025 (61,196) (0.02)
73 Australian 3 Years Bond Futures March 2025 (750) (0.00)
50 SPI 200 Futures March 2025 (120,162) (0.05)
(182,108) (0.07)
49 S&P/Tsx 60 IX Futures March 2025 (265,709) (0.09)
62 CAC 40 10 Euro Futures January 2025 (51,214) (0.02)
11 DAX Index Futures March 2025 (186,836) (0.07)
170 Euro Stoxx 50 Futures March 2025 (214,994) (0.08)
105 Euro-Bobl Futures March 2025 (155,615) (0.06)
130 Euro-Btp Futures March 2025 (372,982) (0.13)
105 Euro-Bund Futures March 2025 (363,590) (0.13)
11 Euro-Buxl 30 Years Bond Futures March 2025 (94,417) (0.03)
104 Euro-Oat Futures March 2025 (308,493) (0.11)
13 Stoxx Euro ESG-X Futures March 2025 4,712) (0.00)
66 Swiss MKT IX Futures March 2025 (85,892) (0.03)
(1,787,531) (0.64)
7 IFSC Nifty 50 Futures January 2025 (1,782) (0.00)
29 FTSE/MIB Index Futures March 2025 (114,604) (0.04)
23 Japan 10 Years Bond (OSE) Futures March 2025 (61,988) (0.02)
27 Amsterdam Index Futures January 2025 (87,903) (0.03)
154 FTSE China A50 Futures January 2025 (207) (0.00)
21 FTSE Taiwan Index Futures January 2025 (13,061) (0.01)
47 Nikkel 225 (SGX) Futures March 2025 (7,376) (0.00)
(20,644) (0.01)
24 FTSE/JSE Top 40 Futures March 2025 (45,189) (0.02)
38 Korea 10 Years Bond Futures March 2025 (59,022) (0.02)
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61 Korea 3 Years Bond Futures March 2025 (18,850) (0.01)
52 KOSPI2 Index Futures March 2025 (34,405) (0.01)
(112,277) (0.04)

7 Omxs30 ESG Futures January 2025 (3,346) (0.00)
284 0mxs30 Index Futures January 2025 (231,713) (0.08)
(235,059) (0.08)

123 FTSE 100 Index Futures March 2025 (256,851) (0.09)
72 Long Gilt Futures March 2025 (262,252) (0.10)
(519,103) (0.19)

2 Emini S& 500 ESG Futures March 2025 (17,190) (0.01)
17 NASDAQ 100 E-Mini Futures March 2025 (257,847) (0.09)
55 S&P500 Emini Futures March 2025 (532,118) (0.19)
112 United States 10 Years Note (CBT) Futures March 2025 (231,836) (0.08)
38 United States 2 Years Note (CBT) Futures March 2025 (7,547) (0.00)
106 United States 5 Years Note (CBT) Futures March 2025 (104,281) (0.04)
84 United States Long Bond (CBT) Futures March 2025 (395,642) (0.14)
105 United States Ultra Bond CBT Futures March 2025 (700,883) (0.25)
(2,247,344) (0.80)

(5,732,455) (2.05)
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2024 12 31
8,024,953 8,380,549 2025 1 16 3 (65,401) (0.02)
1,338 1,408 2025 1 31 4 @y (0.00)
1,413 1,775 2025 1 31 3 ) (0.00)
40,312,170, 455 263,578,416 2025 1 31 3 (6,129,859) (2.19)
4,412,846 692,225,833 2025 1 31 2 (7,966) (0.00)
(6,203,251) .21)
(11,935,706) (4.26)
204,549,288 73.08
(11,935,706) (4.26)
87,267,629 31.18
279,881,211 100.00
” HSBC
a
b
#
26.70
a 0.07
b 0.92
# 21.74
* 19.92
30.65
100.00
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2025

40,049,676.47 5,761,946,954

160,354.21 23,070, 160

39,889,322.26 5,738,876,794
391,420

101.91 14,662
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852
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10
15
21
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33.2
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2025 735,000 10,574

10
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2025

2,022,495,732

10,789,856
15 73,725,904
36,209,671,673
2,724,820,060
12 99,728,691,774
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2024 12 31

2024 2023
4 170,000 24,458 185,000 26,616
4 62,322 8,966 60,009 8,633
232,322 33,424 245,009 35,249
4,340 624 6,390 919
9(c) 107,053 15,402 108,643 15,630
5,015 722 48 7
116,408 16,748 115,081 16,557
115,914 16,677 129,928 18,693
5 - - - -
115,914 16,677 129,928 18,693
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2024 12 31

2024 2023
7 170,000 24,458 185,000 26,616
9(a) 864 124 864 124
6 1,955,991 281,408 2,249,019 323,566
2,126,855 305,991 2,434,883 350,307
9(b) 23,303 3,353 16,752 2,410
- - 428,396 61,633
4,339 624 6,436 926
27,642 3,977 451,584 64,969
2,099,213 302,014 1,983,299 285,337
8 735,000 105,744 735,000 105,744
1,364,213 196,269 1,248,299 179,593
2,009,213 302,014 1,983,299 285,337

Nicolas Henri Jean Papavoine
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2024 12 31

2023 735,000 105,744 1,118,371 160,900 1,853,371 266,644
- - 129,928 18,693 129,928 18,693

Sz 12 3 735,000 105,744 1,248,299 179,593 1,983,299 285,337
- - 115,914 16,677 115,914 16,677

2024 12 31 735,000 105,744 1,364,213 196,260 2,090,213 302,014
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2024 2023
115,914 16,677 129,928 18,693
(62,436) (8,983) (60,034) (8,637)

53,478 7,694 69,894 10,056
15,000 2,158 20,000 2,877
6,551 942 (313,301) (45,075)
(428,396) (61,633) 428,396 61,633
(2,097) (302) 37 )
(355,464) (51,141) 204,952 29,486
62,436 8,983 60,034 8,637
(293,028) (42,158) 264,986 38,124
(293,028) (42,158) 264,986 38,124

2,249,019 323,566 1,984,033 285,443

1,955,991 281,408 2,249,019 323,566

1,955,991 281,408 2,249,019 323,566
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2024 12 31
Cap.22 2000
KY1-1104
309 Maples Corporate Services Limited,

P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

2023 12

22.48
37
5.1

2023 12
2024 31

2024
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2024 12 31

2.3

18 2027

18

2023

21

2025
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2024 12 31

@
@« )

@
(b)

©
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2024 12 31

12
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2024 12 31
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2024 12 31

2024 2023
170,000 185,000
62,436 60,034
(114) (25)
62,322 60,009
2019 10 10 20
2024 2023
1,955,991 2,249,019
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2024 2023
170,000 185,000
2024 2023
735,000 735,000
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2024 12 31
2024 2023
@ 864 864
(b) (23,303) (16,752)
@
(b)
2024 12 31
2024 2023
© 107,053 108,643
©
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2024 12 31

10

@

2024 12 31 2023 12 31

(b)
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2024 12 31
10
©
12
2024 12 31
22,303 - - 22,303
22,303 - - 22,303
12
2023 12 31
16,752 - - 16,752
428,396 - - 428,396
445,148 - - 445,148
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2024

12

2025 21
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorparated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

MNotes 2024 2023
usD UsD
REVENUE
Management fee ncome 4 170,000 185,000
Other incomes 4 62,322 G0.008
232,322 245,009
EXPEMSES
Audit fee 4,340 6,390
Directors’ fee e 107,053 108,643
Other expenses 5.015 48
TOTAL EXPEMNSES 116.408 115,081
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 115,514 120,928
Tax expense 3 - -
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 115514 125,528

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
3
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL POSITION

31 December 2024

Motes 2024 2023
usD usD
ASSETS
Management fee receivable 7 170,000 185,000
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary g(a) 864 BG4
Cash and cash equivalents 6 1,955,991 2,248 019
Total assets 2,126,855 2,434 BB3
LIABILITIES
Amount due to an immediate holding company 8(b) 23,303 16,752
Directors’ fee payable - 428,396
Accruals 4,339 6,436
Total liabilities _ 2ieaz 451,584
NET ASSETS 2,088,213 1,983,289
EQUITY
Share capital 8 735,000 735,000
Retained profits 1,364,213 1,248,289
Taotal equity 2099213 1,983,299

Micolas ri Jean Papavaoing
Directo

The accompanying notes form an irtegral part of these financial statements.
4
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAN) LIMITED
{An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES [N EQUITY

For the yvear ended 31 December 2024

Share Retained

capital profits Tatal

UED LED UsD

At 1 January 2023 735,000 1,118,371 1,853,311
Frofit for the year and total comprehensive

income for the year - 129 928 120,528

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 735,000 1,248 259 1,983,259
Profit for the year and total comprehensive

income for the year - 115,914 115,814

At 31 December 2024 733,000 1,364,213 2089213
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAN) LIMITED
{An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Mote 2024 2023
usD usD
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 115,914 128,928
Adjustments for:
Interest income {62 436) {60,034}
53478 69,894
Decrease in management fee receiable 15,000 20,000
Increasef{decrease) in amount due to an immediate
helding company 6,551 (313,301}
{Decrease)/ increase in directors’ fee payable (428,396) 428,396
Decrease in accruals (2,087) {37)
Cash (used injgenerated from operating activities {395 464) 204,952
Interest income received B2 436 60,034
Met cash flows (used in)fgenerated
from operaling activities (293,028) 264 986
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS {293,028) 264,985
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 2,245.019 1,984,033
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,955 991 2.249.019
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B 1,855 991 2,249.019

The accompanying note form an integral part of these financial statements.
&
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UBS MANAGEMEMT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

UBS Management {Cayman) Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Idands on 4 January 2000 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act, Cap.22 of the Cayman Islands. The Company's registered office is Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 3089, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands,

The Company's principal activities are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of assets in trusts.

On 12 June 2023, UBS Group AG acquired Credit Suisse Group AG, succeeding by
operation of Swiss law to all assets and liabiliies of Credit Suisse Group AG, and became
the direct or indirect shareholder of all of the former direct and indiredt subsidiaries of Credit
Suisse Group AG (the “Transaction”). The Company was one of the indirect subsidiaries of
Credit Suisse Group AG included in this Transaction,

Upeon the completion of the Transaction, each outstanding, registered Credit Suisse share
converted to the right to receive, subject to the payment of certain fees to the Credit Suisse
depository in the case of Credit Suisse American depository shares, the merger
consideration consisting of 1/22.48 UBS Group AG shares. In aggregate, Credit Suisse
shareholders received 5.1% of the outstanding UBS Group AG shares on the acquisition
date, with a purchase price of USD3.7 billicn.

In December 2023, the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of UBS
AG and Credit Suisse AG, and bath entities entered into a definitive merger agreement. The
merger is completed on 31 May 2024,

On 1 March 2024, the Board of Directors has approved to ¢hange the name from Credit
Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited) to UBS Management (Cayman) Limited,

The ultimate holding company is UBES Group AG, a company incorporated in Switzerand.
The directors regarded Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited as the immediate holding
company and UBS AG as the intermediate holding company.

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards issued by International Accounting Standards Board ("IASE™). These
financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets
and liabilities held at fair value through profit or lass, which have been measured at fair value,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumplions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, The
estimates and associated assumplions are based on historical experience and vanous other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which fomn
the basis of making the judgements aboul carming values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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UBS MANAGEMEMT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

These financial statements are presented in United States Dallars ("USDT) and all values are
rounded tothe nearest USD, excepl where olherwise indicated,

The statement of financial position presents assets and liabilities in order of liquidity and does
mat distinguish between current and non-current items,

Certain prior period comparative figures are reclassified to conform with current year
presantation.

2.2  CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AMD DISCLOSURES

The accounting principles adopted in the current pericd are consistent with those of the prior
year, There are no other standards, interprefations or amendments to existing standards that
are effective for the current financial pericd that have a material impact on the Company.

23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Company has not early applied any of the new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31 December
2024 in these financial statements. Among the new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards,
the following is expected to be relevant to the Company's financial statements upon
becoming effective:

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Fimancial Staterments

In April 2024, the |1ASE issued IFRS 18, which replaces |1AS 1 Presemtation of Financial
Statements. IFRS 18 introduces new reguirements for presentation within the statement of
profit or loss, including specified tofals and sublotals, Furthermore, entities are required to
classify all income and expenses within the statement of profit or loss into one of five
categories: operating, investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued operations,
whereof the first three are new.

It also requires disclosure of newly defined management-defined performance measures,
subtotals of income and expenses, and includes new requirements for aggregation and
disaggregation of financial information based on the identified ‘roles’ of the primary financial
statements (PFS) and the notes.

In addition, namow-scope amendments have been made to |1AS 7 Slatement of Cash Flows,
which include changing the starting peoint for determining cash fliows from operations under
the indirect method, from ‘profit or loss' to ‘operating profit or loss' and removing the
opticnality around classification of cash flows from dividends and interest. In addition, there
are consequential amendments (o several other standards. IFRS 18, and the amendments
to the other standards, is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027,
but earlier application is permitted and must be disclosed, IFRS 18 will apply retrospectively,

The Company is currently working to identify all impacts the amendments will have on the
primary financial statements and notes to the financial statements.

L:]
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UBS MANAGEMEMT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liabiliy)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

Lack of exchangeability - Amendments to 1AS 21

In August 2023, the 1ASE issued amendments to |AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rales to specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable
and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The
amendments also require disclosure of information that enables users of its financial
statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency
affects, or is expected toaffedt, the entity’s financial performance, financial position and cash
flows.

The amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025. Early adeption is permitted, but will need to be disclosed. When applying the
amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative information.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

L
A party is considered to be related to the Company if;
a) The party is a person of a close member of that person’s family and that person.
i has contrad or joint control over the Company,
iy has significant influence over the Company; o
it} s a member of the key management personnel of the Company of of a parent of
the Company,

b) The party is an entity where any of the following condition applies:

iy the entity and the Company are members of the same group;

iy one entity i5 an associate o joint ventures of the oher enfity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

i} the entity and the Company are joint ventures of the same third party;

iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and cther entity is an associate of the
third entity:

v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Company or an enfity related to the Company,

vi} the entity is controfled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

vii) & person identified in (a)i) has significant influence over the entity or is @ member
of the key management personnel of the entity {or of a parent of the enfity); and

viii) the entity, or any member of 8 group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Company or to the parent of the
Company.
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UBS MANAGEMEMT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash on hand and
at banks, and short-term highly liquid deposits with a malurity of generally within three
months that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting shor- term cash commitments,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and at banks, and short-term deposits, as defined above, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management,

Ei ial inst E
(I} Classification
In accordance with IFRS 9, the Company classifies its financial assets and financial
liabilities at initial recognition into the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities
discussed below.

In applying that classification, a financial asset or financial liability is considered to be

held for trading if:

{a)lt is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the
near term; or

(b)On initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which, there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking, or

()it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrument)

Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assels as subsequently measured at amortised cost
or measured at FWVPL on the basis of both:

+ The entity's business model for managing the financial assets

s The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

Financial assels measured af amoariised cost

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if it is held within & business model
whose objective isto hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely payments
of principal and interest ("SPFI') on the principal amount cutstanding. The Company
includes in this category short-term non-financing receivables.

Financial assets measured af fair value through profit or lnss ("FLUPLY

A financial asset is measured at FVPL if:

(a)lts contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are SPPI
on the principal amount outstanding; or

{b)lt is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect conlfractual
cash flows, o to both collect contractual cash flows and sell; or

{zhAL initial recognition, it is irmevocably designated as measured at FVYPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement of recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains
and losses on them on different bases,

10
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UBS MANAGEMEMT (CAYMARMN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Einancial instruments (continued)
(i) Classification (continued)

Financial liabilities

inancial | fties re. iF
A finandal liability is measured at F\VPL if it meets the definition of held for trading or is
designated as measured at FVPL upon initial recognition.

inancial labilith
This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at FWPL., The
Company includes in this category amounts relating to short-term payables.

{ii}y Recognition
The Company recognises a financial asset or a financial abiity when, and only when, it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase
or sefl the asset.

(iii} Initial measuremeant
Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in
the statement of financial position at fair value. All transaction costs for such instruments
are recognised directly in profit or loss and other comprehensive incoms,

Financial assets and financial liabilites (other than those classified as at fair value
through profit or loss) are measuredinitially at their fair value plus any directly attributable
incremental costs of acquisition or issue,

(iv) Subsequent measurement

After initial measurement, the Company measures financial instruments which are
classified as at fair value through profit or loss at fair value. Subsequent changes in the
fair value of those finandal instruments are recorded in net gains or losses on financial
assets and liabiliies at fair value through profit or loss in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, Interest and dividends earnad or paid on these instruments are
recorded separately in interest income or expense and dividend income or expense in
profit of loss and cther comprehensive income.

Debt instruments, other than those classified as at fair value through profit or loss, are
reasured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for

impaiment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit o loss when the deft instruments
cost are derecognised or impaired, as well asthrough the amortisation process.

11
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UBS MANAGEMEMT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liabiliy)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{Iv) Subsaquent measurament (continued)

The effective interest method ("EIR") is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exacthy
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
finandial instrument or, when appropriate, & shorter year to the net carring amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instruments, but does not consider expected credit losses ("ECL®. The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

(v} Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognised where:
+ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
« The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third parly under a “pass through” arrangement and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantialty all the risks and rewards of the asset, of (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a "pass-through™ arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor fransferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in the
assel. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liabilty are measured on a basis that reflects the nghts and
obligations that the Company has retained,

The Company derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expired.
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UBS MANAGEMEMT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liabiliy)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024
3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed)

Impairnent of inancial assets

The Company holds only short-lerm recelvables with no financing compeonent and which
have maturities of less than 12 months at amortised cost and, as such, has chosen to apply
an approach similar to the simplified approach for expected credit losses ("ECL") under IFRS
9 to all its receivables, Therefore, the Company does not frack changes in credit risk, but
instead, recognises a |oss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

The Company's approach to ECLs reflects a probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort at the reporting date about past events, cumrent conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

The Company uses the provision matrix as a practical expedient to measuring ECLs on
receivables, based on days past due for groupings of receivables with similar loss pattems.
Receivables are grouped based on their nature. The provision matrx is based on historical
observed loss rates over the expected life of the receivables and is adusted for forward-
locking estimates.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures its investment in financial instruments at fair value at each reporting
date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible tothe Company.

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is based
on their market guoted price within the bidfask price or broker quaotations which could be
indicative prices, without any deduction for transaction costs. Securities defined in these
accounts as listed’ are traded in an active market.

For all other financial insiruments nol fraded in an active market, the fair value is determined
by using valuation technigues deemed to be appropriate in the circumstances. Valuation
techniques include the market approach (i.e., using recent arm's length market ransactions
adusted as necessary and reference to the current market value of another instrument that
is substantially the same) and the income approach (i.e., discounted cash low analysis and
cption pricing models making as much use of available and supportable market data as
possible).
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UBS MANAGEMEMT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liabiliy)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Eair value measurement (continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilfies,

Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directty or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial staterments on & recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing the categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the beginning of each reporting period.

Provisions
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a
result of a past event and it is prebable that a future outfllow of resources will be required to
seitle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the
present value at the end of the reporting pericd of the fulure expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in the statement of profit or loss,

Bevenue recognition
Revenue fFom contracts with clients

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of goods or services
is transferred to the custorners ab an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

(8 Management fee
Management fee income is recognised over time because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company.

Other income

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exacthy discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net camying
amount of the financial asset.

Functional currency
These financial statements are presented in United States dollar, which is the Company's

functional and presentation currency,
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UBS MANAGEMEMT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency of
the reporting unit at the spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction. Al the end of the
reporting pericd, all menetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are
translated fo the functional currency using the closing exchange rate, Differences arising on

settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit o loss.

Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency shall
be translated using the exchange rates at the date of the initial fransactions. Non-monetary
iterns measured at fair value in a foreign cumency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was measured. The gein or loss arising on translation of a
non-maonetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or

loss on change in fair value of the itemn,

Expenses
All expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss on an accrual basis.

4. REVEMUE AND OTHER INCOMES

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of assels in trusts. Total revenue and other income recognised during the year

are as follows:

2024 2023
UsD usD
Revenue:
Management fee income 170,000 185,000
Cther incomes include the following:
Bank interest income 62,436 60,034
Foreign exchange differences. net (114) (25}
62322 50,009
The performance obligation for management fee income is satisfied over time as services
are rendered,
8. TAXATION

There are notaxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Company has received
an underiaking from the Governor in Council of the Cayman [slands exempting i from all
local income, profits and capital taxes for a peried of 20 years from 10 October 2019,

Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in these financial statements.

1%
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UBS MANAGEMEMT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liabiliy)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

EB. CASH AND CASH EQUNALIENTS

2024 2023
usD ush
Cash at bank 1.955.991 2.243.019

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The carmying
amount of the cash at bank approximate to their fair values.

T MAMAGEMENT FEE RECEIVABLES

2024 2023
usD ushD
Management fee receivables 170,000 185,000

Mone of the above assels is either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the
above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of defaull,

8. SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023
usD uspD
Issued and fully paid:
735,000 (2023: 735,000} ordinary shares
of USD1 (2023: USD1) each 735000 735,000

The holders of ardinary shares are entitled toreceive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entiled to one vole per share at general meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Capitsl management

The Company's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's
ability to confinue as a going concem so that it can continue to provide refums to
sharehclders, by pricing semrvices commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access o fmance at @ reasonable cost. As the Company is part of a larger group, the
Company's sources of additional capital and policies for distribution of excess capital may
also be affected by the group's capital management objectives, The Company defines
"capital” as including all components of equity.

The Company's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the
capital management practices of the group towhich the Company belongs. Adjustments are
made to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Company o the group, to the extent that these do not conflict with the directars’ fiduciary
duties bowards the Company.

The Company was nd subject to externally imposed capital requirements in the current
periad.
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UBS MANAGEMEMT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liabiliy)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Farties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to contrdl the other party o
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions,

Outstanding balances with related parties
The Company has the following cutsianding balances due fromito) related companies as al

the end of reporting penod:
Motes 2024 2023
usD ush
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary (&) 864 BG4

Amount due to an immediate holding company k) {23,303) (16,752}

{ay The amount due from a fellow subsidiary represents expenses paid by the Company on
behalf of Credit Zuisse (Singapore) Limited. It is unsecured, interest-free and has no
fiwed terms of repayment.

(b} The amount due to an immediate holding company represents expenses paid by Credit
Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited on behalf of the Company, It is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Transactions with related parties
Except as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, during the year ended 31
December 2024, the Company had the following material transactions with related parties:

MNotes 2024 2023
usD usD

Compensation of key management personnel
of the Company <) 107,053 108,643

(¢} The details of the remuneration of the directors, being the key management personnel
defined as a related party of the Company

17
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UBS MANAGEMEMT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

10.

FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMEMNT

The Company's imvesting activities expose it to various types of rick that are associated with
the financial instruments and markets in which it invests, The most important types of
financial risk to which the Company is exposed are market risk, credit and counterparty risk
and liquidity risk. Market risk includes foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. The
directors oversee the management of these risks,

The nature and extent of the financial instruments cutstanding at the end of reporting period
and the risk management paolicies employed by the Company are discussed below.

(a) Market nisk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from uncertainty conceming movements in market
prices and rates, including observable variables such as interest rates, credit spreads,
exchange rates, and others that may be only indirectly cbservable such as volatilities
and correlations, Market risk includes such factors as changes in economic
environment, consumplion pattern and investors' expectation etc. which may have
significant impact on the value of the investments. Market movement may therefore
result in substantial fluctuation in the financial pesition of the Company.

Foreign cumrency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through certain transactions
which give rise to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dellars, Since the Hong
Kong Dollars is pegged to the USD, the Company's exposure to foreign currency risk
in respect of the invoices and expenses denominated in USD is considered to be
minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it eams bank
interest on cash at bank, At 31 December 2024 and 2023, a change in interest rates
would have no direct material effect on the carrying value of the recognised assels or
liabilities of the Company.

(by Creddt and counterparty risk

Credit and counterparty risk is the risk of loss resulting from client or counterparty
default and arises on credit exposure in all forms. including sefflement risk. The
Company's credit and counterparty nsk i1s primarily attnbutable to cash and cash
equivalents and amaounts due from related companies, The Company's management
regularly monitors the credit and counterparty risk of all the financial assels. It is
considered that they are not past due or impaired for each of the reporting dates under
review. Mone of the Company's financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit
enhancements.

The directors considered the credit and counterparty nsk as rminimal since the
Company's clients are the Company's related companies,
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UBS MANAGEMEMT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

10.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
()  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to
meet commitments associated with financial liabilities. The Company's strategy is to
minimise its exposure to liquidity risk by monitering the Company's liquid capital from
tire to time and by obtaining funds from partners where necessary.

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilties

based on contractual undiscountad payments, Balances due within one year equal their

carmying amounis, asthe impact of discounting is insignificant. The table also analyses

the maturity profile of the Company's financial assets (undiscounted where appropriate)

1:1 adder to provide a complete view of the Company's contractual commitments and
cuichity.

Financial liabilties
The maturity grouping is based on the remaining peried from the end of the reporting
perod to the contractual maturity date. When a counterparty has a choice of when the
amount is paid, the liability is allocated tothe earliest period in which the Company can
be required to pay.

Financial assels

The analysis into maturity groupings is based on the remaining pericd from the end of
the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, if earlier, the expected date on
which the assets will be realised.

On Less than 3tai2 Ma
demand 3 months months maturity Tedal
UsD usD s UsD Uso
31 December 2024
Financial labities
Amounts due to the
immediate halding
company 22303 - - - 22,303
22303 - - - 22 303
on Less than Jtoi2 Mo
demand 3 manths months maturity Total
5D UsD sD UsD usoD
31 December 2023
Financial [abilies
Amounts due to the
immediate holding
company 16,752 - - - 16,752
Directors’ fee
payable 428,306 - - - 428,396
445,148 - - - 445,148
19
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

11.

UMCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

The Company considers itself the sponsor of a structured entity when either its name appears
in the name of the structured entity of in products issued by it or there is a general expectation
from the market that the Company is associated with the structured enfity or the Company
was involved in the design or set up of the structured entity and has a form of invoihvement
with the structured entity,

The below unconsolidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where a fixed
annual management fee of USDS 000 (2023 USDS,000) each is received but no interest is
held by the Company as at 31 December 2024,

Awustralian High Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
US REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Frincipal f C5 Canadian Equity Income Fund (For Qualified institutional Investors Only)
Global REIT Triple Premium Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)®

US Preferred REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Cnby)®

Japan Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

MHEMYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Gualified Institutional Investors Only)*

Daiwa UK High Dividend Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)*
Brazil Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Daiwa Brazilian Real Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Missay Japan Equity Active Fund (For Qualified institutional Investors Only)

AMP Australia REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Cinly)

J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualified Instifutional Investors Only)

Daiwa Amencan High Dividend Equity Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional
Investors Only)

Daiwa American REIT Cuattro Income Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Cnly)
Shinsei World Wrap Stable Type (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

US REIT Triple Engine Plus Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

US Municipal Bond Fund

Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund®

Global High Dividend Equity Premium Fund (Fer Qualified Instituticnal Investors Only)
Meister's Collection

PIMCO Sheet Term Income Strategy Fund

FIMCO Short Term Strategy

Daiwa J-REIT Covered Call Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage Strategy Fund

SBl PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund

ALD Short Term Bond Fund

Insight Alpha

US Dynamic Growth

Prerium Carry Strategy Fund

BSMD Global Advantage

Daivwa WIL Ventures ill, L.P. Fund

Japan Equity Premium Strategy Fund

Global Select Carry Strategy Fund

* The funds were terminated during 2024,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAN) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liabiliy)

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

11. UNCOMNSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES {continued)

The Company has nol provided financial or other support to unconsolidated structured
entities that it was not contractually required to provide,

The Company does not currenthy hawve the intention to provide financial or other support to
unconsolidated structured entities that is not contractually required to provide.,

12. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS

The finandaal statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
an 21 May 2025,

2
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2025 100 4,387
2022 11
MUFG Fund Services (Cayman)
Limited
2025
719
UBS
2024 12 449
JSDA
JSDA
UBS AG, London Branch
2024 12 386 555 3,382
1978 28
1997 12
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1998 29
1862 1872
CHE-101.329.561
Aktiengesel lschaft
NYSE
NYSE
UBS UBS 100
UBS

1998

BR004507

EC2M  2QS
Daiwa Asset Management (Europe)
Ltd
2025 500,000 9,706
1987
2025 30
194.12

2025 414 2,454
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1999 26

Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

MUFG Fund Services (Cayman)

UBS AG, London Branch

Daiwa Asset Management (Europe)

UBS
UBS
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KPMG LLP

P.O. Box 493

SIX Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman lIslands

Tel +1 345 949 4800

Fax +1 345949 7164
Web www.kpmg.com/ky

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage
Strategy Fund (the “Series Trust”), a series trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) Il (the “Trust”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at January 31, 2025, the statements of comprehensive
income, changes in net assets attributable to holder of redeemable units, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes, comprising material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Series Trust as at January 31, 2025, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IFRS Accounting Standards”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trusts ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trusts financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Series Trusts internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trusts a- bility to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

May 28, 2025
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Independent auditor *s report
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (the "Company™),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by International Accounting Standards Board (““1ASB””).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor-®s
responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the "Code') issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.
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Independent auditor *s report (continued)
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor”s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent auditor *s report (continued)
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor™s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor"s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
21 May 2025
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